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ROBERT M. SCHWARTZ (Cal. Bar No. 117166)
JAMES P. JENAL (Cal. Bar No. 180190)
THOMASP. JRGAL (Cal. Bar No. 202637)
O'MELVENY & MYERS LLP

1999 Avenue of the Stars, Suite 700

Los Angeles, California 90067

Tel hone 310) 553-6700

Facs mile: (310) 246-6779

Attorneys for Plaintiffs

UNITED STATESDISTRICT COURT
CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

METRO-GOLDWYN-MAYER
STUDIOS INC., a Delaware corporation;
DISNEY ENTERPRISES, INC,, a
Delaware corporation; TWENTIETH
CENTURY FOX FILM
CORPORATION, a Delaware
corporation; COLUMBIA PICTURES
INDUSTRIES, INC., a Delaware
corporation; CPT HOLDINGS, INC., a
Delaware corporation; COLUMBIA
PICTURES TELEVISION, INC., a
Delaware corporation; TRI STAR
TELEVISION, INC., a Delaware
corporation; TRISTAR PICTURES, INC.,
a Delaware corporation; ELP
COMMUNICATIONS, a Cdifornia
partnership; PARAMOUNT PICTURES
CORPORATION, a Delaware
corporation; UNIVERSAL CITY
STUDIOS, INC., a Delaware corporation;
TIME WARNER ENTERTAINMENT
COMPANY, L.P., aDelaware limited
partnership,

Plaintiffs,
V.
RECORDTV.COM, a California
corporation; DAVID SIMON, an
individual; and DOES 1 through 10,

Defendants.

Case No.
COMPLAINT FOR:
(1) COPYRIGHT INFRINGEMENT,

(2) TRADEMARK INFRINGEMENT
IN VIOLATION OF LANHAM ACT
§32 (15 U.S.C. § 1114)

(3) UNFAIR COMPETITION IN
VIOLATION OF LANHAM ACT
§ 43(a) (15 U.S.C. § 1125(a)),

(4) VIOLATION OF THE CABLE
COMMUNICATIONS POLICY ACT
(47 U.S.C. § 533),

(5 UNFAIR COMPETITION IN
VIOLATION OF CAL. BUS. & PROF.
CODE § 17200, and

(6) COMMON LAW UNFAIR
COMPETITION
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Plaintiffs Metro-Goldwyn-Mayer Studios Inc., Disney Enterprises, Inc., Twentieth
Century Fox Film Corporation, Columbia Pictures Industries, Inc., CPT Holdings, Inc.,
Columbia Pictures Television, Inc., TriStar Television, Inc., TriStar Pictures, Inc., ELP
Communications, Paramount Pictures Corporation, Universal City Studios, Inc., and Time
Warner Entertainment Co., L.P., (collectively, “Plaintiffs’), for their Complaint against
Defendants RecordTV.com, David Simon, and Does 1 to 10 (collectively, “ Defendants’),

allege and aver as follows:

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

1. Through this action, Plaintiffs assert claims against Defendants arising under
the Copyright Act of 1976, as amended, 17 U.S.C. 8§ 101 et seq., the Trademark Act of
1946, as amended, 15 U.S.C. 8§ 1051 et seg., the Cable Communications Policy Act of
1984, 47 U.S.C. § 553(a)(1), Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code 8§ 17200, and California common
law. This Court has original subject matter jurisdiction over Plaintiffs' federal clams
pursuant to 28 U.S.C. 88 1331, 1337(a), and 1338(a), and supplemental subject matter
jurisdiction over Plaintiffs’ state law claims pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1367(a).

2. This Court has specific personal jurisdiction over al of the defendants as each
has purposefully committed, within the state, the acts from which these claims arise
and/or has committed tortious acts outside California, knowing and intending that such
acts would cause injury within the state. The Court also has general personal jurisdiction
over Defendant RecordTV.com and Defendant David Simon as each conducts continuous,
systematic, and routine business within the State of California and the County of Los
Angeles.

3. Venueis proper in the United States District Court for the Central District of
California pursuant to 28 U.S.C. 88 1391(b), 1391(c) and 1400(a).
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NATURE OF THE CASE

4. Plaintiffs — copyright holders and/or motion pictures studios — bring this action
to put a stop to Defendants’ willful piracy on the Internet. Defendant RecordTV.com and
its founder, Defendant David Simon, operate a World Wide Web site through which they
make unauthorized copies of Plaintiffs' copyrighted television programs and motion
pictures through the unlawful use of a Los Angeles area cable television signal. After
making these infringing copies, Defendants publicly perform them to anyone in the world
who has an Internet connection. RecordTV.com claims to receive more than one million
visitor “hits’ at its site each day and to have more than 50,000 active users of its service.

5. Defendants say that RecordTV.com represents an “innovation” in the delivery
of televison programming. In reality, Defendants are doing nothing more innovative than
using modern computer technology to make bootlegged copies and offer unauthorized
public performances and public displays of Plaintiffs works on an advertiser-supported
web site. RecordTV.com and Mr. Simon have taken what is not theirs, duplicated it, and
distributed it for their own commercial gain to millions of Internet users around the world.
RecordTV.com and Mr. Simon are fully aware that their actions violate the law.
Defendants have admitted that their lawyers advised them that their actions were — as
Defendants put it — “completely illegal.” Defendants tell anyone who reads their publicly
available business plan that, “ The beauty of this businessis that we have ZERO cost of
content for the web site. . ..” While Defendants may want to pay nothing for their
content, Plaintiffs and their affiliates have no such luxury. Plaintiffs and/or their affiliates
spend billions of dollars every year to develop, produce, distribute, and promote the
television shows, motion pictures, and other content that Defendants have paid “ZERO” to
copy, display, and perform publicly on their commercial site for their own profit.
Defendants are aware of Plaintiffs' rights arising under copyright law but refuse to respect
them. Accordingly, Plaintiffs respectfully seek this Court’ s assistance to stop Defendants
theft of their intellectual property and to recover for the damage that Defendants have
aready inflicted.
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THE PARTIES
6. Plaintiff Metro-Goldwyn-Mayer Studios Inc. (“MGM”) is a Delaware

corporation with a principal place of business at 2500 Broadway Street, Santa Monica,
California90404. MGM owns (directly or through subsidiaries) the United States
copyright in episodes of many television series telecast by United States television
stations, such as Sargate SG-1, Cagney and Lacey, and In the Heat of the Night. MGM
also owns (directly or through subsidiaries) the United States copyright in many theatrical
motion pictures telecast by United States television stations, such as Rocky, Rocky 11, and
Rocky 111, and the “James Bond” movies, such as Diamonds Are Forever, For Your Eyes
Only, and The Living Daylights.

7. Plaintiff Disney Enterprises, Inc. (“Disney”) is a Delaware corporation with its
principal place of business at 500 South Buena Vista Street, Burbank, California 91521.
Disney owns the United States copyright in many episodes of television programs tel ecast
by United States television stations, such as Home Improvement and The Wonderful
World of Disney. Disney also owns the exclusive distribution rights and United States
copyright in many theatrical motion pictures telecast by United States television stations,
such as George of the Jungle, Honey, | Shrunk the Kids, and A Smple Twist of Fate.

8. Plaintiff Twentieth Century Fox Film Corporation (“Fox”) is a Delaware
corporation with a principal place of business at 10201 West Pico Boulevard, Los
Angeles, California 90035. Fox owns the United States copyright in many episodes of
television series telecast by United States television stations, such as The Smpsons, Ally
McBeal, The X-Files, Dharma and Greg, Buffy The Vampire Sayer, King of the Hill, The
Practice, and Chicago Hope. Fox aso owns the United States copyright in many
theatrical motion pictures telecast by United States television stations, such as Toys, Nine
Months, and Mrs. Doubtfire.

9. Plaintiffs Columbia Pictures Industries, Inc., CPT Holdings, Inc., Columbia
Pictures Television, Inc., TriStar Television, Inc., and TriStar Pictures, Inc., are Delaware

corporations with a principal place of business at 10202 West Washington Boulevard,
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Culver City, Cdifornia90232. Plaintiff ELP Communications is a California partnership
with aprincipa place of business at 10202 West Washington Boulevard, Culver City,
California90232. Together, these six plaintiffs — collectively referred to hereinafter as
“Columbia’ — own the United States copyright in many episodes of television series
telecast by United States television stations, such as Who' s the Boss, Mad About You,
Married with Children, Designing Women, Party of Five, and The Young and the Restless.
Columbia also owns the United States copyright in many theatrical motion pictures
telecast by United States television stations, such as It Could Happen to You, Look Who's
Talking Too, and Places in the Heart.

10. Paintiff Paramount Pictures Corporation (“Paramount”) is a Delaware
corporation with a principal place of business at 5555 Melrose Avenue, Los Angeles,
California 90028. Paramount owns the United States copyright in many episodes of
television series telecast by United States television stations, such as Cheers, Frasier,
Entertainment Tonight, Sar Trek: Voyager, Wings, and JAG. Paramount also owns the
United States copyright in many theatrical motion pictures telecast by United States
television stations, such as Top Gun, Trading Places, Tommy Boy, and The Saint.

11.  Plantiff Universal City Studios, Inc. (*Universal”) is a Delaware
corporation with a principal place of business at 100 Universal City Plaza, Universa City,
Cdlifornia91608. Universal owns the United States copyright in many episodes of
television series telecast by United States television stations, such as Murder, She Wrote.
Universal also owns the United States copyright in many theatrical motion pictures
telecast by United States television stations, such as The Breakfast Club, Jurassic Park,
and Babe.

12.  Paintiff Time Warner Entertainment Company, L.P. (“Warner Bros.”) isa
Delaware limited partnership with a principal place of business at 4000 Warner
Boulevard, Burbank, California 91522, whose divisions include Warner Bros. and Warner
Bros. Television. Warner Bros. owns the United States copyright in many episodes of
television series telecast by United States television stations, such as E.R., Friends, The
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Drew Carey Show, and Night Court. Warner Bros. also owns the exclusive distribution
rights under United States copyright in many theatrical motion pictures telecast by United
States television stations, such as The Bodyguard, Batman, Presumed Innocent, and
Selena.

13.  Uponinformation and belief, Defendant RecordTV.com is a Caifornia
corporation with its principal place of business in Agoura Hills, California. It isdoing
business within the jurisdiction of this Court.

14.  Upon information and belief, Defendant David Simon (“Simon”) is a citizen
and resident of the State of California. Simon is doing business within the jurisdiction of
this Court.

15.  The true names and capacities, whether individual, corporate or otherwise,
of the defendants named herein as Does 1 through 10 are presently unknown to Plaintiffs,
who therefore sue said defendants by such fictitious names. Plaintiffs will seek to amend
this Complaint to allege the true names and capacities of said defendants when they have
ascertained such information. Plaintiffs are informed and believe that each defendant
named herein as Does 1 through 10 has participated in some or al of the acts or conduct

alleged in this Complaint and is liable to Plaintiffs by reason thereof.

AVERMENTSCOMMON TO ALL CLAIMS

16. Paintiffs own the United States copyrights or own exclusive rights under
copyright in a substantial amount of television programming telecast in the United States
and offered on Defendants website, including (without limitation) a substantial amount of
the prime-time programming, such as E.R., Ally McBeal, Frasier, Star Trek: Voyager, The
Drew Carey Show, Friends, King Of The Hill, The Smpsons, Mad About You, Married
With Children, and The X-Files. Plaintiffs also own the United States copyrights or own
exclusive rights under copyright in thousands of theatrical motion pictures which are
licensed for telecast and retransmission by United States television stations and cable

television system operators, including the cable system that Defendants are using.
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17.  Inaddition to copyrights in these television programs and movies, Plaintiffs
own registered and unregistered trademarks associated with these creative works, or are
licensees with the legal right to use these trademarks.

18. Intotal, Plaintiffs and/or their affiliates spend severa billion dollars each
year to create, develop, produce, and distribute such programming. Plaintiffs either sell or
license such programming to various media outlets. For each movie or television program
produced by Plaintiffs, their ability to recover their respective investments depends on
their ability to offer licensees the exclusive right to exhibit or distribute such television
program or movie, either temporally or geographically.

19. Defendants are the operators of an Internet site called RecordTV.com. Itis
found at <http://www.RecordTV.com>. Defendants describe the service provided by the
RecordTV.com web site as an advertiser-supported, commercia “Internet VCR” through
which users of the site may “record” television programming and movies for subsequent

viewing. Thefollowing is atrue and correct image of Defendants home page, as it

appeared on June 14, 2000, which Plaintiffs incorporate herein by this reference:

oo Vet Bt VOH - Musnsoh kniersed Eaplsrer prmad e by (FMeheary 4 Myses LLP

E T g e—p—r -y | o
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A whole new way to record and view TV WITHOUT a VCR!
Registered Users Login Here:
Liser E-Mail Password | Sehmat |

New Users Click here to signup...it's FREE

HrE This is a whele new way to tape TV shows. You will ne longer
Tuesday need your old VCR. This site does most everything your
Tiodnesdav | current VCR can do and then some. You can record any show

Eriday you want with simple "One-Click Recording" ., then any time —
p;:ﬁ:d" you want after the show airs, come back here and watch your
|howves show. You can even record multiple channels at the same
Advanced time. You will even be able to rewind, replay, pause and fast
Kt forward just like your current VCR.
[Company Infe
Iadvertise With — Due to the fact that we are having so many problems right now viewing shows,
s anyone who has signed up before July 1, 2000 with a valid amail address will
m:l U recelve one free year premium subscripgtion once we start offering a premium
——— service. This is to thank you for being patient while the site is not working
. _rlj properly...hang in there! -
&] Cone Fr F
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20.  To Internet users who visit the RecordTV.com site, Defendants offer a
weekly cable television schedule from which visitors may choose television programs and
movies to have copied for viewing once the authorized broadcast has been compl eted.
The following is atrue and correct image of Defendants page of show listings, as

Defendants made it available to the public on June 14, 2000, which Plaintiffs incorporate

herein by this reference:

X Record TV.com Your Internet YR - Microsolt Interme! Explorer provided by O'Melveny & Myers LLP
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3 ESPH |Sportslanter SportsCentar SportsCentar Sport=Centar
4 HBC  [Todaw 0l Today Today Later Taday
Manday
Tuescday
Wednesday Rl i
ETLA Moming Mews Eaty |, ’ ; -
Thursday 5 ETLA Edlinon ETLA Moming blews ETLA Moming bleys Sally Jeszy B
Friday
Play My ; ;
Shaws 1 KABC E:.'.&mme&& ElE.‘éLL'ILEE.‘i Good Marring & 5 = A A Regs 8 Kath
Advanced
Features Lmerica's Amenoss
2 Usa  [Bloomberg nformetion Telsusion Eunniest Furniest Hearrs Afre
Hormea wWidens |Home Wdeos
Channel & oMM B 308 7 100 71304 2 100 g 204N R ale |
E-Eutjﬂﬂ—u—s S kLAl m:grgrn mireg cdlar Pr@qrummﬂg_ Programming Pm[gmr_ﬂlng Warld M
= CATLIS ’j %
1 | ] |4l | k
] Shordutior ssp?scs 2L sl=hEs== 200006 140 003 gmi=-7 Aen=T he Eary Shoe o Intmnet

21.  RecordTV.com will copy not only those of Plaintiffs’ copyrighted works
that are broadcast on free, over-the-air stations, but also those of Plaintiffs’ copyrighted
works that are publicly displayed on maor cable television channels and that are available
for viewing only by persons who pay afee to a cable television service for permission to
view such programming.

22. Plaintiffs allege on information and belief that one or more of the defendants

Is a subscriber of a cable television service located in the County of Los Angeles and is

8
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using the cable television signal received from that service as the source of the “services’
available on RecordTV.com. Each television program or movie in the weekly television
schedule presented to RecordTV.com usersis “hot-linked.” Thus, to select a program for
recording, the visitor need only “click” on the listing with his or her mouse pointer.

23.  After auser has requested atelevision program or movie, RecordTV.com
uses the signal from its cable television service provider and its computer facilities and
storage devices to create an unauthorized digital copy of the television program or movie.
RecordTV.com then stores this unauthorized, digital copy at its facilities for 10 daysto
permit viewing by the user who requested RecordTV.com to make the unauthorized,
digital copy. Within 10 ten days, the user may view a “streamed” public performance and
public display of the unauthorized, digital copy anywhere he or she has Internet access, as
many times as he or she wants.

24. Toview acopied television program or movie, the user must return to the
RecordTV.com web site. Once there, the individual may view alist of television
programs or movies that RecordTV.com has copied for the user. Each listing for a copied
television program or movie is “hot-linked.” To watch any one of them, the user need
only click on the listing for the television program or movie.

25.  Once acopied television program or movie is selected for viewing,
RecordTV.com transmits the digitized television program or movie through the Internet to
the end-user, who is then able to watch a“ streaming” or “streamed” performance of one
of Plaintiffs’ copyrighted works.

26.  According to Defendants, thousands of individuals a day use the
RecordTV.com site to request that Plaintiffs’ television programs and movies be copied
and retransmitted.

27.  Oninformation and belief, if it were not for Defendants' illegal activities,
many users of RecordTV.com, particularly those outside the Los Angeles area and/or
those without cable television service, would not have lawful access to the copyrighted

programs they view through RecordTV.com.
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28.  Defendants sell advertising space on its site to various individuals and
companies. The following is atrue and correct image from Defendants' site, as
Defendants made it available to the public on June 14, 2000, which shows some of the

“banner ads’ running on Defendants' site, and which Plaintiffs incorporate herein by this

reference:
B Recond TV com - Mictosof Interet Explorer proided by O'elvamy & Myass LLP
Hle Edi }f_‘le« Fﬂ.‘u:"_:lﬂl.ﬂﬁ Toals I:I_E_llil al
Addnes= |Iﬂ htip ) rwer. r@oardbe.com fr.es pre c=Bdsl =308 == =300 0061 41900 Lgrmi=-7 A =n=Friands ﬂ .c'r" Qo
« 2 . @ J wylm A g |Ee 3 o 3 O e
| fiA =nsi Sap Feiesh  Home Semth Feworkas Hstons Size Frint Gl Copy Feeta - Fealcom

"Friends" will be recorded on 06/14/2000 at 19:00

Click here to go back or just close this window.

il ' netsetter.com

— Ciic hers

e I 1 ) MINUTES
e R

K

2] Cana o b

29.  According to Defendants, the revenue generated from this advertising is
directly related to the number of visitors to the RecordTV.com site. Thus, the more
individuals that visit RecordTV.com, the more money RecordTV.com’s advertisers pay it.
Defendants estimate that the site will generate in excess of $900,000 this year from such
advertisements.

30. Various news media outlets, including many outside of the United States,
have profiled Defendants’ illegal practices, thereby boosting Defendants notoriety, web

traffic, and revenue.
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31. To generate additiona revenues, Defendants plan to add video commercials
to Plaintiffs' copyrighted works and to offer premium services (e.g., HBO, pay-per-view
movies, etc.) for a subscription fee.

32. Defendants have not been granted a license to copy, publicly perform, or
publicly display Plaintiffs’ copyrighted programs or use Plaintiffs’ trademarks.

33.  Defendants have not sought to license the right to copy, publicly perform, or
publicly display Plaintiffs’ copyrighted programs and have no intention to do so. Rather,
according to a business plan that Defendants distribute to any person making an e-mail
request, “The beauty of this business is that we have ZERO cost of content for the web
site....”

34. TheRecordTV.com web site offers no other services or products besides the
unauthorized copying, public performance, and public display of Plaintiffs’ copyrighted
programs.

35. Plaintiffs alege on information and belief that Defendants have received
legal advice informing them of the illegality of their actions, yet have decided to continue
offering their copy, public performance, and public display service.

36. Plaintiffs allege on information and belief that Defendants have no intention
of ceasing their illegal activities until ordered to do so by a court of law. In fact,
Defendants state in their business plan that despite their knowing and flagrant violation of
Plaintiffs copyrights and trademarks, their conduct is “not likely to be subject to asmple

summary judgment or cease and desist |etter.”

FIRST CLAIM FOR RELIEF
(Copyright Infringement under 17 U.S.C. 8 101 et seq., against al Defendants)

37. Plantiffs reallege the alegations contained in paragraphs 1 through 36 of
this Complaint as though fully and completely set forth herein.
38. Plaintiffs are the legal or beneficial owners of certain United States

copyrights in and to a substantial amount of television programs and movies currently

11
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() MGM: Sargate SG-1 (e.g., Reg. No. PA 920-870); Cagney and Lacey
(e.g., Reg. No. PA 201-317); In the Heat of the Night (e.g., Reg. No. PA 380-479);
Diamonds Are Forever (e.g., Reg. No. RE 808-180); For Your Eyes Only (e.g.,
Reg. No. PA 108-671); The Living Daylights (e.g., Reg. No. PA 345-071); The Spy
Who Loved Me (e.g., Reg. No. LP 48613); War Games (e.g., Reg. No. PA 176-
384); and You Only Live Twice (e.g., Reg. No. RE 712-225). True and correct
copies of the copyright registration certificates for the foregoing works are attached
hereto as Exhibit A in the order identified above and incorporated herein by this
reference.

(b) Disney: Hello Again (e.g., Reg. No. PA 342-401); Honey, | Shrunk the
Kids (e.g., Reg. No. PA 416-847); My Boyfriend's Back (e.g., Reg. No. PA 641-
567); George of the Jungle (e.g., Reg. No. PA 671-091); and A Smple Twist of
Fate (e.g., Reg. No. PA 716-937). True and correct copies of the copyright
registration certificates for the foregoing works are attached hereto as Exhibit B in
the order identified above and incorporated herein by this reference.

(c) Fox: Ally McBeal (e.g., Reg. No. PA 958-102); Buffy the Vampire
Sayer (e.g., Reg. No. PA 963-758); The X-Files (e.g., Reg. No. PA 957-982); The|
Smpsons; (e.g., Reg. No. PA 963-743); King of the Hill (e.g., Reg. No. PA 660-
457); The Practice (e.g., Reg. No. PA 958-332); Mischief (e.g., Reg. No. PA 241-
496); and Alien 3 (e.g., Reg. No. PA 565-581). True and correct copies of the
copyright registration certificates for the foregoing works are attached hereto as
Exhibit C in the order identified above and incorporated herein by this reference.

(d) Columbia: Designing Women (e.g., Reg. No. PA 336-225); Mad About
You (e.g., Reg. No. PA 619-316); Married . . . With Children (e.g., Reg. No. PA

12
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388-775); The Nanny (e.g., Reg. No. PA 736-451); Party of Five (e.g., Reg. No.
PA 751-180); The Young and the Restless (e.g., Reg. No. PA 937-351); It Could
Happen to You (e.g., Reg. No. PA 719-415); Lady in Question (e.g., Reg. No. R
440723); and Places in the Heart (e.g., Reg. No. PA 228-302). True and correct
copies of the copyright registration certificates for the foregoing works are attached
hereto as Exhibit D in the order identified above and incorporated herein by this
reference.

(e) Paramount: Cheers(e.g., Reg. No. PA 678-574); Frasier (e.g., Reg. No.
PA 775-812); The Maury Povich Show (e.g., Reg. No. PA 671-008); The Montel
Williams Show (e.g., Reg. No. PA 671-015); Stark Trek: Voyager (e.g., Reg. No.
PA 775-677); Wings (e.g., Reg. No. PA 678-470); Tommy Boy (e.g., Reg. No. PA
701-975); and Trading Places (e.g., Reg. No. PA 180-572). True and correct
copies of the copyright registration certificates for the foregoing works are attached
hereto as Exhibit E in the order identified above and incorporated herein by this
reference.

(f) Universal: Murder She Wrote (e.g., Reg. No. PA 751-134); The
Breakfast Club (e.g., Reg. No. PA 265-464); Jaws. The Revenge (e.g., Reg. No. PA
412-519); Magnum, P.I. (e.g., Reg. No. PA 130-196); Northern Exposure (e.g.,
Reg. No. PA 515-830); and Smon and Smon (e.g., Reg. No. PA 135-178). True
and correct copies of the copyright registration certificates for the foregoing works
are attached hereto as Exhibit F in the order identified above and incorporated
herein by this reference.

(g) Warner Bros.: The Drew Carey Show (e.g., Reg. No. PA 827-198); The
Dukes of Hazzard (e.g., Reg. No. PA 46-830); E.R. (e.g., Reg. No. PA 775-450);
Friends (e.g., Reg. No. PA 789-111); Lois & Clark: The New Adventures of
Superman (e.g., Reg. No. PA 758-057); Night Court (e.g., Reg. No. PA 208-027);
Cheyenne Autumn (e.g., Reg. Nos. LP 32384 & RE 586-377); Hot To Trot (e.q.,
Reg. No. PA 383-404); House of Wax (e.g., Reg. No. RE 82-028); Presumed

13
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Innocent (e.g., Reg. No. PA 477-416); and Selena (e.g., Reg. No. PA 873-082).

True and correct copies of the copyright registration certificates for the foregoing

works are attached hereto as Exhibit G in the order identified above and

incorporated herein by this reference.

39. Defendants have made the foregoing television programs or, in some cases,
other episodes thereof, and the foregoing movies available for copying, public
performance, and public display on RecordTV.com.

40. Because, in the absence of discovery, Plaintiffs do not presently know
which of their copyrighted works Defendants have copied, publicly performed, and
publicly displayed, Plaintiffs cannot presently identify which of their copyrighted works
have been infringed and in which respects. Upon obtaining that information, Plaintiffs
will seek leave of this Court to amend this Complaint to allege which of their specific
copyrighted works Defendants have unlawfully copied, publicly performed, and publicly
displayed.

41.  Through the Internet site RecordTV.com, Defendants have copied, publicly
performed, and publicly displayed Plaintiffs copyrighted works without Plaintiffs
authorization. Each such act is an infringement of the exclusive rights granted to
Plaintiffsby 17 U.S.C. § 106.

42.  Through the Internet site RecordTV.com, Defendants intend to continue
copying, publicly performing, and publicly displaying Plaintiffs’ copyrighted works
without Plaintiffs' authorization. Each such act will be an infringement of the exclusive
rights granted to Plaintiffs by 17 U.S.C. 8§ 106.

43.  Defendants infringement has alowed them to collect profitsin the
thousands of dollars and is adversely affecting the potential market for and value of
Plaintiffs copyrighted works that Defendants have infringed and are continuing to
infringe.

44.  Defendants committed each act of infringement with the knowledge that the

television programs and movies they were copying, publicly performing, and publicly
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displaying were subject to valid United States copyright registrations and with the
knowledge that Defendants were not authorized to copy, publicly perform, or publicly
display such copyrighted works. Defendants' infringement was thus “willful” within the
meaning of 17 U.S.C. § 504(c)(2).

45.  For Defendants' completed acts of infringement, Plaintiffs are entitled to
recover Plaintiffs actual damages and any profits of Defendants not taken into account in
computing the actual damages or, at their election, statutory damages for willful
infringement in the amount of $150,000 per copyrighted work infringed.

46. Monetary relief aone is not adequate to address fully the irreparable injury
that Defendants’ illegal actions have caused and will continue to cause Plaintiffs if not
enjoined. Plaintiffs therefore are also entitled to preliminary and permanent injunctive

relief to stop Defendants' ongoing infringement of Plaintiffs’ copyrights.

SECOND CLAIM FOR RELIEF
(Trademark Infringement under 15 U.S.C. 8 1114, against all Defendants)

47.  Plaintiffs reallege the allegations contained in paragraphs 1 through 36 of
this Complaint as though fully and completely set forth herein.

48. Plaintiffs are the owners of registered trademarks associated with the
ownership of television programs and movies whose copyrights Defendants have
infringed and are infringing including, by way of illustration, “MGM” (e.g., Reg. Nos.
1,380,800 and 2,246,312), “20th Century Fox” (e.g., Reg. Nos. 1,465,225 and 1,884,026),
“Paramount” (e.g., Reg. No. 1,695847), “Universa” (e.g., Reg. No. 2,285,891), and
“Warner Bros.” (e.g., Reg. No. 1,026,466), as well as the trademarks used to identify
numerous individual television programs, such as The Smpsons (e.g., Reg. No.
1,916,921), The X-Files (e.g., Reg. No. 1,899,298) and ER (e.g., Reg. No. 2,094,532).

49.  Through the Internet site RecordTV.com, Defendants are using Plaintiffs

registered trademarks in commerce without the authorization of Plaintiffsin away that
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has caused consumer confusion as to Plaintiffs association with, affiliation with, or
sponsorship of Defendants' web site and the services provided thereby.

50.  Such actions were intended to cause confusion, have caused confusion, and
will continue to cause confusion unless enjoined.

51.  For each completed act of infringement, Plaintiffs are entitled to recover
their actual damages as well as Defendants' profits from such infringement.

52. Monetary relief alone is not adequate to address fully the irreparable injury
that Defendants’ illegal actions have caused and will continue to cause Plaintiffs if not
enjoined. Plaintiffs therefore are also entitled to preliminary and permanent injunctive

relief to stop Defendants' ongoing infringement of Plaintiffs’ registered trademarks.

THIRD CLAIM FOR RELIEF
(Unfair Competition under 15 U.S.C. § 1125(a), against al Defendants)

53. Plaintiffs reallege the alegations contained in paragraphs 1 through 36 of
this Complaint as though fully and completely set forth herein.

54.  Plaintiffs are the owners of unregistered trademarks associated with the
television programs and movies whose copyrights Defendants have infringed and are
infringing including, by way of illustration, Who's the Boss, Mad About You, Married
With Children, and The Young and the Restless. Each of these trademarks is inherently
distinctive. Plaintiffs, moreover, have developed and maintain substantial secondary
meaning in each of these trademarks.

55.  Through the Internet site RecordTV.com, Defendants are using Plaintiffs
unregistered trademarks in commerce without the authorization of Plaintiffs in away that
has caused consumer confusion as to Plaintiffs’ association with, affiliation with, or
sponsorship of Defendants' web site and the services provided thereby. These actions
constitute unfair competition in violation of § 43(a) of the Lanham Act, 15 U.S.C. §
1125(a).
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56.  Such actions were intended to cause confusion, have caused confusion, and
will continue to cause confusion unless enjoined.

57.  For each completed act of unfair competition, Plaintiffs are entitled to
recover their actual damages as well as Defendants’ profits from such infringement.

58. Monetary relief alone is not adequate to address fully the irreparable injury
that Defendants' illegal actions have caused and will continue to cause Plaintiffs if not
enjoined. Plaintiffs therefore are also entitled to preliminary and permanent injunctive

relief to stop Defendants' ongoing unfair competition.

FOURTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF
(Violation of the Cable Communications Policy Act of 1984,
47 U.S.C. 8§ 553(a)(1), against all Defendants)
59. Plaintiffs reallege the alegations contained in paragraphs 1 through 36 of

this Complaint as though fully and completely set forth herein.

60. Defendants actionsin splitting their cable signal and/or re-transmitting
portions thereof to others violate the Cable Communications Policy Act of 1984, 47
U.S.C. § 553(a)(1).

61. Defendants violations were willful and for the purposes of commercial
advantage or private financia gain.

62. Plaintiffs have been aggrieved by Defendants' conduct and will continue to
be aggrieved by this conduct unless Defendants are enjoined.

63. For Defendants completed violations, Plaintiffs are entitled to their actual
damages and any profits of Defendants not taken into account in computing the actual
damages or, at their election, statutory damages of up to $50,000.

64. Monetary relief alone is not adequate to address fully the irreparable injury
that Defendants’ illegal actions have caused and will continue to cause Plaintiffs if not
enjoined. Plaintiffs therefore are also entitled to preliminary and permanent injunctive

relief to stop Defendants ongoing violations of the Cable Communications Policy Act.
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FIFTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF
(Unfair Competition in violation of Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code § 17200,
against all Defendants)

65. Paintiffs reallege the alegations contained in paragraphs 1 through 36 of
this Complaint as though fully and completely set forth herein.

66. Defendants actions discussed herein constitute unfair competition within the
meaning of California Business and Professional Code § 17200.

67.  Pursuant to California Business and Professional Code § 17203, Plaintiffs
are entitled to preliminary and permanent injunctive relief ordering Defendants to cease
this unfair competition, as well as disgorgement of all of Defendants' profits associated

with this unfair competition.

SIXTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF

(Common Law Unfair Competition, against all Defendants)

68. Plaintiffs reallege the alegations contained in paragraphs 1 through 36 of
this Complaint as though fully and completely set forth herein.

69. Defendants actions discussed herein constitute unfair competition under the
common law of the state of California

70. Defendants actions have harmed Plaintiffs and will continue to harm
Plaintiffs unless Defendants are enjoined.

71.  Asaconsequence of Defendants’ unfair competition, Plaintiffs are entitled
to damages and preliminary and permanent injunctive relief ordering Defendants to cease

this unfair competition.

WHEREFORE, Paintiffs pray for relief against Defendants, and each of them as
follows:
1. That Defendants, their agents, servants and employees and all persons acting in

concert with them be restrained and enjoined preliminarily and permanently from
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copying, atering, publicly performing, duplicating, and publicly displaying Plaintiffs
copyrighted works and trademarks, or any colorable representation thereof.

2. That al copies of Plaintiffs’ worksin Defendants possession, custody, or
control be destroyed, or otherwise appropriately disposed of, and that all storage devices,
copying, streaming, and other distribution equipment, including all computers, computer
servers, all hardware and software pertaining or connected thereto, and all other devices
by which Defendants have copied, publicly performed, of publicly displayed Plaintiffs
works, be seized from Defendant and destroyed, or otherwise appropriately disposed of,
pursuant to 17 U.S.C. § 503.

3. That Defendants be required to account for al gains, profits and advantages
derived from their acts of infringement and for their other violations of law.

4. That Defendants be required to pay over to Plaintiffs the actual damages
suffered by them as aresult of the infringement and any profits of Defendants attributable
to the infringement of Plaintiffs exclusive rights under copyright and to pay such
damages to Plaintiffs as this Court shall deem to be just and proper within the provisions
of the Copyright Act, or, in the alternative, at Plaintiffs' election, statutory damages as set
forthin 17 U.S.C. 8 504.

5. That Defendants be required to pay over to Plaintiffs the actual damages they
have suffered by Defendants' infringement of their registered and unregistered trademarks
aswell as any profits derived by Defendants from this infringement.

6. That Defendants, their agents, servants and employees and all persons acting in
concert with them be restrained and enjoined preliminarily and permanently from
intercepting or receiving or assisting in intercepting or receiving any communications
service offered over a cable system without authorization from a cable operator, pursuant
to 47 U.S.C. § 553(c)(2)(A).

7. That Defendants be required to pay over to Plaintiffs the actual damages
suffered by them as aresult of Defendants' violation of the Cable Communications Policy

Act of 1984 and any profits of Defendants not taken into account in computing the actua
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damages or, at their election, statutory damages of up to $50,000, pursuant to 47 U.S.C. §

553(c)(2)(B).

8. That Plaintiffs recover their costs of suit incurred heren.

9. That Plaintiffs recover their attorneys fees reasonably incurred in this action.
10. That Plaintiffs have such other and further relief as the Court deemsjust and

proper.

Dated: June 15, 2000.

ROBERT M. SCHWARTZ
JAMES P. JENAL
THOMASP. JRGAL
O'MELVENY & MYERSLLP

By

Robert M. Schwartz
Attorneys for Plaintiffs
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